
 

 

 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Date: Wednesday, 7 September 2022 
Time: 10.30 a.m. 

Venue: Mandela Room, Town Hall 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

  

3.   Minutes - Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel - 22 
June 2022 
 

 3 - 6 

4.   Integration of Health and Social Care - Verbal Update 
 
The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration will 
provide the panel with a verbal update regarding the 
integration of health and social care. 
 

  

5.   The Role of the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) in 
Supporting Adult Social Care (with a focus on Covid-19 
Recovery) - Further Information 
 
The following officers will be in attendance to provide the 
Scrutiny Panel with information regarding the financial 
elements of the investigation (including grant funding; 
programmes delivered; and Welfare Rights / benefit take up 
and advice): 
 
The Head of Resident and Business Support; 
The Head of Strategic Commissioning and Procurement; 
The Strategic Business Manager; and 
The Voluntary Sector Liaison and Grants Officer. 
 

 7 - 22 

6.   Overview and Scrutiny Board Update 
 
The Chair will present a verbal update on the matters that 
were considered at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board held on 19 July 2022. 
 

  

Page 1



 

 
7.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may 

be considered. 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Tuesday, 30 August 2022 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors J Platt (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), D Davison, T Higgins, D Jones, 
G Purvis, D Rooney, R Sands and J Walker 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Chris Lunn, 01642 729742, chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel 22 June 2022 
 

 
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
A meeting of the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel was held on Wednesday, 22 June 
2022. 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors J Platt (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), D Davison, G Purvis,  
D Rooney and R Sands. 

 
OFFICERS: C Lunn, J McNally and E Scollay. 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

 
Councillors T Higgins, D Jones and J Walker. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.  
 
MINUTES - ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL - 30 MARCH 2022 
 
The minutes of the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 30 March 
2022 were submitted and approved as a correct record. 
 
INTEGRATION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE - VERBAL UPDATE 
 
The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration provided Members with an update 
regarding the integration of Health and Social Care; the following points were made: 
 

 The transition from the current Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) arrangement 
to the Integrated Care System (ICS) was almost complete, with the switch over due to 
take place on 1 July 2022. 

 The Chief Operating Officer of the ICS was now formally in place, alongside other 
senior personnel. 

 Structurally, the ICS would comprise an Integrated Care Board (ICB), i.e. the formal 
NHS Board where financial authority and financial allocations for the region would sit, 
and below that, an Integrated Care Partnership (ICP).  Membership of the ICB was 
stipulated within legislation, whereas the ICP would provide opportunity for local 
partners to come together to share their priorities and commissioning aspirations.  
This would then ‘feed into’ the ICB for deliberation around decision-making. 

 The geography of the North East and North Cumbria ICS was larger than any other, 
not necessarily by population, but area size.  Representations had been made to the 
Chair of the ICB throughout the development exercise, which indicated that a single 
ICP across the geography would not be practical and would mean that individual 
places would struggle to be heard.  It was explained that following the development 
stages, the NHS had formally announced that the area would have sub-ICPs: the 
Tees Valley sub-ICP would comprise the five Tees Valley local authorities and would 
largely reflect the same footprint as the current CCG model.  The Director envisaged 
that much would feel the same in terms of day to day practical operation, and that 
benefits pertaining to the prevention agenda and the longer term equalities agenda 
would arise from this. 

 Each local authority area had been asked to look at ten operational priorities in Adult 
Services and in Children’s Services within Public Health.  Senior officers from those 
respective authorities would be meeting on 1 July 2022 to discuss converting those 
locally identified priorities into a set of themes for the ICP.  The five themes / priorities 
identified in respect of Adult Services were:  
 
- Ageing well;  
- Sustainability (with a large focus on workforce challenge);  
- Hospital discharge and admission avoidance;  
- Mental health; and  
- Prevention and inequalities.   
 
It was explained that these themes would be regularly referenced in local inter-agency 
meetings because they had emerged from work undertaken with the CCG, colleagues 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



22 June 2022 

 

in the VCS, and Public Health.  It was felt that this approach would also facilitate joint 
working locally within the ICS. 

 
During the discussion that followed, a Member queried the progress of the transition from the 
CCG to the ICS arrangement and whether any issues had been either envisaged or 
experienced.  In response, the Director indicated that, at present, the senior officers within the 
ICS had been appointed, which included the accountable officers who would work with the 
respective local authorities for the various geographical areas.  It was indicated that not all of 
the final appointments had been made for the senior staff at local level, but it was anticipated 
that this process would be completed within the next fortnight.  In terms of finance, reference 
was made to an operating model that focused on delegated financial decisions, which on a 
broad basis was felt to be sensible and worked in line with the Tees Valley’s objectives.  It 
was possible that increased negotiation between the Local Authority and the NHS may be 
necessary in dealing with some matters, such as in respect of continuing healthcare, though 
this had not been encountered as of yet.  
 
The Chair thanked the Director for the information presented. 
 
NOTED 
 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE - AN OVERVIEW 
 
The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration was in attendance to provide an 
overview of the service area. 
 
Reference was made to the operation of Adult Social Care in relation to its structure and 
profile.  The Director outlined the various teams and services that comprised it; identified the 
relevant Executive portfolios; and highlighted such matters as: community inclusion; 
equipment service support; independent care services and commissioning to external 
providers; and support provided by the Voluntary and Community Sector. 
 
A Member made reference to the work of the Estate team and queried whether direct 
payments were included within this.  In response, it was indicated that they were not included.  
The Director explained that Middlesbrough Council was one of the earlier authorities to 
embrace this approach, which had become a normal part of the support plans that all Social 
Workers put in place.  The work of the Estate team was narrower than that. 
 
With regards to challenges facing the service area this year, Members heard that these 
included: 
 

 NHS reform and the necessity to ensure a sufficient presence and representation for 
Middlesbrough Council and the Tees area (reference was made to the sub-ICP and 
priorities for the local area); 

 Adult Social Care reforms, of which there were three elements: 
 

 Charging reform, which related to how individuals paid for their care.  
Proposals had been made by the government and plans to respond to this 
were currently being devised.  A project plan was being led by the Head of 
Resident and Business Support; the Director chaired a reform board.  It was 
explained that a substantial increase to staffing resources in responding to the 
reforms would be required; however, staffing was currently an issue for all 
Local Authorities.  It was felt that there would be a significant funding 
challenge around this, particularly in areas where there was a high number of 
self-funders (Middlesbrough did not fall into that). 

 

 Fair Cost of Care – the service area had been mandated to undertake an 
exercise, which related to a payment framework for care providers and 
examining the real cost of care provision (e.g. rising utility, insurance, fuel and 
food costs).  There was a requirement to report the outcome of this work to 
the government by October 2022.  Consideration was given to the cost of care 
provision in Middlesbrough in comparison to other areas, and potential 
pressures that this could cause.  Reference was made to the Medium Term 
Financial Plan and related considerations within this. 

 

Page 4



22 June 2022 

 

 Care Quality Commission (CQC) Assurance Framework and the future 
inspection regime; the full framework was currently awaited.  It was indicated 
that from April 2023, the CQC would start a benchmarking process and 
operate a two-year inspection cycle.  Reference was made to inspections 
undertaken over the last 12 years; the austerity period and current demands.  
Activities including short peer reviews and discussions with Children's 
Services around service improvement and lessons learned would be taking 
place over the summer, which would assist with work around self-evaluation 
and awareness.  A former director had also been commissioned to challenge 
data and performance.  A report detailing the framework would be submitted 
to the Executive in due course. 

 

 Workforce planning – reference was made to the review undertaken by the Scrutiny 
Panel last year (‘The Recruitment and Retention of Staff within Adult Social Care’) 
and the implementation of the recommendations arising from that.  It was indicated 
that the key priority was to retain experienced personnel.  

 Complexity and demand – there was increasing pressure around this and it was felt 
that work was becoming more complicated as time progressed. 

 
The Chair thanked the Director for the information presented. 
 
NOTED 
 
SETTING THE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK PROGRAMME - 2022/2023 
 
The Democratic Services Officer submitted a report, the purpose of which was to assist 
Members in considering and agreeing the panel’s work programme for the 2022/2023 
Municipal Year. 
 
A list of topical issues and the suggestions received in respect of the scrutiny panel's remit 
were contained in the submitted report.  It was suggested that the scrutiny panel should select 
a maximum of two topics for full review, along with several short topics and updates.  It was 
noted that there was one review from the previous year to be completed: ‘The Role of the 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) in Supporting Adult Social Care (with a focus on 
Covid-19 Recovery)’. 
 
The Director of Adult Social Care and Health Integration provided additional information and 
some further topical and update suggestions to Members, which included the provision of 
statistical data in relation to service demand. 
 
Members discussed the information provided by officers at the meeting, the topics suggested 
in the report, and the suggestions made by those Councillors present, which included 
‘Hospital Discharge’ and ‘Charging Reforms and Fair Cost of Care’. 
 
Following discussion, Members agreed the following items for the 2022/2023 Work 
Programme: 
 
Main Topics: 
 

1. ‘The Role of the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) in Supporting Adult Social 

Care (with a focus on Covid-19 Recovery)’ - current review topic (work to continue 

from the next meeting - 7 September 2022); and 

2. ‘Hospital Discharge’ (final title TBC in due course, but the review will focus on the 

impact of the cost of care and the impact of care worker recruitment on hospital 

discharge and the Council’s Adult Social Care services.  The impact on lone adults 

will also be assessed as a supplementary ‘feed in’ area of focus).  

Updates: 

1. Integration of Health and Social Care (standard agenda item); 

2. A performance report in respect of increases in service demand will be provided on a 

quarterly basis.  As reporting systems and processes are currently being reviewed, 

Page 5



22 June 2022 

 

this will commence from Autumn/Winter 2022; 

3. Charging Reforms and Fair Cost of Care – updates to be provided as work 

progresses; and 

4. Previous scrutiny review – ‘The Recruitment and Retention of Staff Within Adult Social 

Care’. 

AGREED that: 
 

1. The information provided was received and noted; and 

2. The topics listed above, would be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Board for 

approval. 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD UPDATE 
 
The Chair provided a verbal update on the matters that were considered at the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board meetings held on 27 April 2022, 11 May 2022 and 22 June 2022. 
 
NOTED 
 
PROPOSED MEETING SCHEDULE 2022/2023 
 
A proposed schedule of meeting dates for the Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel 
for the 2022/2023 Municipal Year was submitted for Members’ consideration. 
 
A brief discussion ensued with regards to the venue for the meetings and whether or not these 
would be held virtually or in person.  Further updates would be provided in due course. 
 
AGREED that the proposed meeting dates for 2022/2023 were approved. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 6



Grants to the Voluntary Sector
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/community-support-

and-safety/community-grants

email: communitygrants@Middlesbrough.gov.uk

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



Process
• Programme determined and panel put together

• Criteria and application form developed

• Programme launched

• Application forms submitted

• Assessment and due diligence taken place

• Panel meeting 

• Offer letters sent and returned

• Payment raised

• Monitoring 

P
age 8



Totals 2021/22

664 grants processed

532 Approved

80% successful

P
age 9



Amounts awarded
• 2018/19 £290,950

• 2019/20 £303,293

• 2020/21 £1,342,664

• 2021/22 £2,287,739

Current projections:

2022/23: £581,821 + HAF allocation

2023/24: £195,000 + HAF allocation

P
age 10



Programmes delivered 21/22
• Community Grant Fund

• Covid Recovery Grant Programme

• Covid Communications

• Covid Champions Network Development

• Holiday Activity Fund (HAF)

• Dementia Grant

• Carers Grant Programme

• Staying Included

• Befriending

• Short Breaks

P
age 11



Core Grants
Middlesbrough Voluntary Development Agency 
Allocation: £41314 + £38250 = £79564

St Marys Centre 

Allocation: £12625

Citizens Advice Bureau 

Allocation: £87314 + £46000 = £133314

P
age 12



Citizens Advice Bureau
No of enquiries Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Benefits
1589 1588

1801 1776 6754

Debt
601 698

840 853 2992

Housing
129 203

230 224 786

Employment

298 172

186 167 823

Consumer inc utilities

645 377

479 587 2088

Community care

178 135

133 90 536

other

285 513

784 708 2290

total 3725 3686 4453 4405 16269

P
age 13



Hub Advice & Benefit Take Up 
Tel: 01642 802303

email: benefitsadvice@actes.co.uk

P
age 14



Benefit Take Up / Hub Advice 
Service

 Hub Advice commenced Sept 2013 – Big Lottery funded

 CAB, Age Concern Teesside, CHAC delivery partners

 Weekly advice sessions at fixed venues

 Lottery funds ceased June 15, – MBC funded to June 16

 FIG initiated benefit take up campaign 2014 – non 
advice partners invited

 Above partners plus Welfare Rights, MBC’s Democratic 
Services and Actes.

 Successful and public health funded to end of June 2016

 Executive approved July 2016 - £200k annually for 
integrated benefits advice service

P
age 15



Offering pre / post Covid
 Pre Covid – Hub Advice and Benefit Take Up offered at 

fixed weekly advice sessions at some venues & one off 
sessions at range of venues

 Due to Covid, sessions telephony only – reduced no. of 
residents using service

 Sessions re-opened following Covid restrictions -
appointment only 

 During 2021 one off sessions ceased due to increased 
risk of Covid infections and reluctance of venues to open

 All receive full interview inc form completion, help to 
challenge adverse decisions, benefit entitlement calc’s

 Service now provides weekly sessions at the following:

P
age 16



Offering Pre / Post Covid cont.
Venue

Grove Hill Hemlington Library

North Ormesby Hub Breckon Hill Community Hub

Easterside Community Hub Live Well Centre

Neptune Centre Hope Foundation

Streets Ahead Contact Centre

Thorntree Newport

P
age 17



People Outcomes
CLIENT NUMBERS

Number of Clients 
Accessing Service 
in The Time Period

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

188 303 274 300

CLIENTS BY AGE AND GENDER

AGE QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Under 18 1

18 to 24 10 9 5 14

25 to 39 50 63 53 61

40 to 49 32 61 44 47

50 to 59 38 70 72 65

60+ 53 91 87 99

Unknown/Not specified 5 8 13 14

GENDER

Female 107 162 147 170

Male 78 132 121 129

Unknown/Not 
specified/Other

3 9 6 1

P
age 18



Financial Outcomes

 1065 residents supported during 01.04.21 – 31.03.22

 Total benefits identified £5,156,759

 Large spectrum of benefits identified - mainly:

 Personal Independence Payments

 Universal Credit

 Pension Credit

 Attendance Allowance

 Employment Support Allowance

P
age 19



Moving forward
Welfare Rights team part of Resident and Business 

Support as from December 2021

 Review of all financial assistance, advice and support as 
part of welfare strategy – all centralised. 

 Discussions commenced with CAB – ensure no 
duplication 

 Outcome to be clarified with CAB by end of Nov 22

 Formal contract as opposed to grant offering

P
age 20



Any questions

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel - 22 June 2022
	5 The Role of the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) in Supporting Adult Social Care (with a focus on Covid-19 Recovery) - Further Information

